
Procurement Board 
In line with advice from HM Government, the council is now holding only essential 
meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain the safety of the public, staff and 
councillors. These meetings are being held electronically and, unfortunately, you will 
not be able to attend them.   

However, the City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public 
involvement and input into the decision-making process. 

Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda. 

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Decision notices or minutes from meetings will be available as appropriate. Should you 
wish to view decisions taken meetings of the Cabinet and other Lead Member 
Briefings, they will be available for viewing on the council website - 
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus

DATE: Wednesday, 13 May 2020

TIME: 10.00 am

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 22 April 2020 

(Pages 1 - 2)

4  Matters arising 

5  Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public) 

5a Request for Approval - Contract Award - Salford Carers Service (Pages 3 - 12)

5b Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - 
Contract Award - Salford Advocacy Hub 

(Pages 13 - 48)

5c Request for Approval - Acceptance of the Tender for the Gas and Oil 
Boiler SLA Contract 

(Pages 49 - 56)

Public Document Pack

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx
https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus


6  Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public) 

7  Exclusion of the public 

8  Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public) 

9  Date and time of next meeting 

10:00am on Wednesday 3 June. At the time of finalising this current 
agenda it is anticipated that the meeting will be held via TEAMS.

Contact Officer: Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services Advisor
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


Procurement Board meeting held via TEAMS

22 April 2020

Meeting commenced: 10:02 a.m.
Meeting ended: 10:15 a.m.

Present

Councillors Boshell and Hinds (in the chair).

In Attendance

Chris Hesketh Head of Financial Management
Anthony Hilton Head of Strategic Procurement
Matt Wall Network Infrastructure Manager
Carol Eddleston Democratic Services

1. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of City Mayor Paul Dennett and Councillor 
Merry.

2. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

3. Minutes of Proceedings

The minutes of the meeting held on 8 April 2020 were approved as a correct record.

4. Matters Arising

There were no matters arising.

5. Request for Approval – Contract Award - Unified Communications software and 
support

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director of Service Reform seeking approval 
to award a contract for unified communications software and support.

It was noted that out of 19 companies which were invited to bid for the contract, only one 
tender was submitted and the board considered a number of possible reasons for this.

The Social Value offer outlined in the report was somewhat generic and officers would take the 
opportunity to work with XMA Limited on how they might tailor their specific offer to Salford 
and would ask them to clarify their position in relation to the City Mayor’s Employment 
Standards Charter and the Foundation Living Wage.

RESOLVED, THAT: a 36 months’ contract with a total value of £535,037.22 be awarded to XMA 
Limited for the provision of unified communications software and support.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Sample B – award of contract 

Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for People Services

TO

Procurement Board

ON

13th May 2020

 
TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for Carers Service

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for Carers Service as 
detailed in the table below:
 

Detail required Answers
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project Carers Service

Name of Successful Contractor The Gaddum Centre
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Charity – 507162   Company – 1348975

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Registered Charity

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME

Contract Value £2,331,951.00 Full Project
Contract Duration 60 months

Contract Start Date 01/10/2020
Contract End Date 30/09/2025

Optional Extension Period 1 12 months
Optional Extension Period 2 0 months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Procurement Board (extension > £150k)

Page 3

Agenda Item 5a



Sample B – award of contract 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned 
contract.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Extension Exception Report, 24th July 2019 – Approval given to extend the existing 
contact with Gaddum for a further 6 months to 30th September 2020. Approval was 
also given to procure a service to commence from 1st October 2020.

Report to Health and Care Commissioning Board on 22nd January – Approval given to 
publish the All-age Carers Strategy. The All-age Carers Service Specification was also 
approved.

KEY DECISION:  

Yes – total value of the contract is greater than £350,000 

DETAILS: 

1. Background

Approval to procure a carers service contract to commence from 1st October 2020 was 
granted by the Health and Care Commissioning Board in July 2019. 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Jessica Ta’ati 0161 212 5635
Lead Service Group People Services

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement) Tender (Open)

Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date

N/A

Funding Source Revenue Budget

Ethical Contractor Mayor’s Employment Charter
Committed to sign up to charter

 
 

Accredited Living Wage Employer

Page 4



Sample B – award of contract 

In line with the Greater Manchester Carers Charter, Salford’s Carers Service 
objectives are as follows:

 Objective One: Identifying Carers
 Objective Two: Improving Health and Wellbeing  
 Objective Three: Carers as Real and Expert Partners   
 Objective Four: Right Help at the Right Time
 Objective Five: Young Carers and Young Adult Carers
 Objective Six: Carers in / into Employment 

The Carers Service will provide high quality information, advice and support to 
carers to continue to care and have a life outside of caring.

The Carers Service will support statutory partners to deliver the statutory duties 
in respect of carers under the Care Act 2014 and Children and Families Act 2014 
by ensuring that they are identified as early as possible, through engaging in 
development activities with organisations in Salford so that they can both identify 
carers they have in their workforce, or are providing a service to and develop 
carer friendly policies and practices.

The service will be the provision of support to carers in the following categories:

 Identification
 Carers Assessment - proportionate
 Support – Carer/Caring role
 Advice and Information
 Health - Wellbeing
 Socially Connected
 Maintain Education
 Maintain Employment/Working Carers
 Young Carers
 Parent Carers
 Vulnerable Groups
 Experts by Experience
 Training
 Right time right place
 Self-Care
 Neighbourhood/Peer Support
 Hospital Support
 Carers Advocacy
 Specific MH service support

The contract includes provider obligations associated with Social Value and 
added value. The provider will be expected to deliver Salford’s priorities and 
standards in relation to Social Value by signing up to the City Mayor’s 
Employment Charter and the 10% Better Campaign. To ensure the provider is 
meeting the requirements of the contract, the outcomes achieved, as a result of 
social or added value, will be monitored via regular performance monitoring. This 

Page 5



Sample B – award of contract 

will meet the Council and CCGs policy aims to ensure a ‘social return’ from its 
investment by securing social value from: 

 Doing responsible business and being a good employer
 Regeneration, housing and planning activity
 Business, economic growth/skills and work activity
 Internal providers, mutuals and joint venture partnerships
 Applying Salford City Council’s new procurement strategy - which focuses 

on maximising social value
 Ensuring that the service will contribute to Salford’s Climate Change 

objectives

2. The Procurement Process

The tender was advertised through the Chest – the North West online procurement 
portal to give maximum exposure. 

The tender process followed was an over OJEU Open Tender under the ‘Light Touch 
Regime’ of the Public Contract Regulations 2015. There were 48 providers who 
expressed their interest in the opportunity with two providers subsequently submitting 
a bid.  

Bidding Providers were required to supply the following information in order for the 
evaluation panel to evaluate each bid. The weightings are included for information.  

 Capability Questionnaire (Pass/Fail) – to test Providers had the required 
infrastructure and were financially sound to deliver the contract. Safeguarding 
was also included in this section.

 Quality Questionnaire (70%) – to test the Providers understanding of the 
specification and proposals to deliver the service

 Cost (20%) – a fixed price was submitted to deliver the service over the life 
contract.

 Presentation (10%) – it was initially intended for Providers to be invited to 
deliver a presentation including the opportunity for the panel to ask questions 
to clarify specific issues with the bid. However, due to the response relating to 
COVID-19 it was decided by the panel that an alternative method would be 
utilised to obtain a response to the presentation question. In order to fulfil the 
requirements for stage three, a written response was requested for each 
provider with the opportunity to seek clarity via the Chest.

The evaluation panel consisted of:

 Individual with lived experience
 Integrated Commissioning Manager 
 Children and Young People Commissioning Manager  
 Head of Integrated Commissioning
 Principle Social Worker – Salford Care Organisation  
 Head of Partnerships Children and Young People
 Salford Together Partnerships Lead – Salford CVS

Page 6



Sample B – award of contract 

The results of this tender exercise are shown below:

Name of Bidder
% Price 
score 
(20%)

% Quality 
score 
(80%)

% 
Overall 
Score 
(100%)

Cost (5 year 
contract)

Provider 1 19.55% 64.00% 83.55% £2,331,951.00
Provider 2 20.00% 58.60% 78.60% £2,280,000.00

Through the procurement process, a saving of £68,049.00 will be realised over the 
duration of the 5 year contract against the 5 year allocated budget for the service.

This is a 5 year contract with the option to extend for up to 12 months.  The approval 
to enter into the extension period will be made by Procurement Board prior to the end 
of the initial 5 year contract period, subject to satisfactory performance and budget 
availability.  

3. Social Value

The winning Provider has included the following social value as part of the contract 
delivery: 

Item Target Timescale Social value /or priority

Target of 80% of workforce to be Salford 
residents

80% Annually Local employment 
opportunities

Volunteering - roles would include;

 ‘Friends of Salford Carers’ group
 Hub support (first point of contact)
 Peer support calls for carers as part of 

the step down for the service
 Co-facilitating carers awareness training

35 per 
annum 

1 year – review 
annually 

£72,800

35 x 140 (average 4 hours 
per week x £10 per hour)

Student Social Workers; 

We would offer placements within the service to 
student social workers looking for experience of 
case management and supporting the Hub. 

We would target University of Salford and local 
colleges.

6 2 SW students 
in service for 70 
days starting 
January, June, 
September

£10,000 

(420 workdays provided)

Apprentice workers – local young people from 
Salford

2 Annually Increased employment 
opportunities 

School / College work experience placements – 
offer opportunities for local young people to help 

3 Annually Increased employment 

Page 7



Sample B – award of contract 

them gain health & social care experience. opportunities

Additional Funding for the service and Salford 
community currently includes;

1. Booths funding – to cover costs for young 
carers activities and resources

2. Zochonis funding – to pay for 1.5 young 
carers workers to support the Lowry 
partnerships

3. National Lottery Funding – targeted young 
carers support service, providing additional 
capacity for young carers support in 
Salford. 

4. Salford University – Emerging Minds 
funding to support research project on male 
young carers.

5. RHS funding – funding confirmed to 
improve the outdoor space at Kings Court

5 From service 
commencement 
– reviewed 
annually

Confirmed funding:

£33,704

£65,000

£120,428

£38,594

£500

Total: £258,226

Link with partners in Salford to provide additional 
opportunities for carers including; 

 Lowry Partnership – young carers group
 Salford Together – development of carers 

passport scheme
 Northern Care Alliance – raising 

awareness of carers within secondary 
care, partnership funding for innovation 
hub with SRFT. 

 Salford City Council – support for working 
carers group.

 6 Degrees – joint partnership support 
‘Empowered Conversations’ for carers

10 From 
commencement 
reviewed bi-
annually 

Increased community 
strength and resilience 

Free venue space for local community groups 
and Salford CVS partners.

20 From service 
commencement 
Reviewed 
biannually

£4,000

60% Suppliers and contractors are Salford based 
businesses/traders

60% Annually Improved impact on the 
environment

4. Conclusion

The scope of the all age carers support service is required to meet the needs of carers 
in of Salford has already been approved as a positive development. Following delivery 

Page 8



Sample B – award of contract 

of a robust procurement process we are recommending the award of contract to the 
Gaddum Centre. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

All Age Carers Strategy 2019 - 2024

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

EIA was carried out as part of the initial review process.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

This is considered to be of low risk.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

Integrated Fund - Adults

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the 
provisions of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 as well as its own Contractual 
Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best and Social 
Value. In addition, the Regulations require that contracting authorities treat candidates 
equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner, failing which 
the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge. 

The procurement procedure undertaken in this matter appears robust, and the 
appointment of the provider for this service follows an open tender process which is 
outlined within the body of the report, and which is compliant with the requirements of 
CSO’s and public procurement legislation. Undertaking the open tender exercise in 
the recommendation will give some comfort to the Council in ensuring that value for 
money is being obtained and periodically tested, with open competition maintained.  

In view of the specialist nature of the services, the award of the contract will commit 
the Council to a five year contract with the Gaddam Centre, with the option to extend 
for a further twelve month period. Legal Services will advise and assist in the drafting 
of any contractual documentation upon receipt of instructions. 

As the value of the contract award exceeds £1 million, Procurement Board will 
recommend the award to the City Mayor who can then take the decision.

Page 9



Sample B – award of contract 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Stephen Thynne, Strategic Finance 
Manager

The existing carer’s service contract ends on 31st September 2020 and approval was 
given to procure a new service to commence from 1st October 2020. This report 
recommends that Procurement Board approve the award of the contract to The 
Gaddum Centre, the cost of the contract over the 5 year period is £2.332m and there 
is an option to extend for a further year. Funding is within the adults section of the 
integrated fund and the contract amount is within the increased target financial 
envelope agreed by the Health and Care Commissioning Board for the service. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Christopher Conway, Procurement 
Category Manager, tel. 0161 686 6248

Procurement are happy to approve the recommendation to award the contract to The 
Gaddum Centre (Provider 1) for period 1st October 2020 to 30th September 2025 with 
an option to extend for up to an additional 12 months until the 30th September 2026 
(as requested in the Procurement Board report).

HR IMPLICATIONS:  N/A

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: 

The terms and conditions of the contract is inclusive of a specific clause relating to 
climate change. This requires the provider to be actively supportive of the climate 
change agenda in achieving a carbon neutral status by 2038.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

Children and Young People Commissioning

Salford Care Organisation 

CONTACT OFFICER: Jessica Ta’ati                                  TEL. NO. 0161 212 5635

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): 

Page 10



Sample B – award of contract 

All wards.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF

Strategic Director People 

TO

Procurement Board

ON

Wednesday 13th May 2020

TITLE:  Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award a 
contract for Salford Advocacy Hub.

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Procurement Board approves an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 
as permitted within the City Council Constitution for the reason(s) highlighted in the 
table below and the award of the Contract for Salford Advocacy Hub as detailed in 
the table below:

Detail required Answers
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project Salford Advocacy Hub

Name of Successful Contractor Mind in Salford
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Registered Charity

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME

Contract Value £391,000.00 Per Annum (estimated average)
Contract Duration 12 months 

Contract Start Date 01/04/2021
Contract End Date 31/03/2022

Optional Extension Period 1

Optional Extension Period 2

Page 13

Agenda Item 5b



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to request an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 
to approve the award of a contract for Salford Advocacy Hub

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

The paper was shared with Cllr Gina Reynolds and Charlotte Ramsden in the 
absence of a Lead Member Briefing. The outcome was approval to bring the paper 
to Procurement Board. 

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Strategic Director (extension < £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number) Clare Mayo  0161 212 4236

Lead Service Group People Services

The goods / services / works are only 
obtainable from one provider and there is no 
other provider available to allow genuine 
competition
The execution of works or the supply of goods 
or services is controlled by a statutory body
Delivers Best Value to the Council
Special education, health or social care 
contracts, if it is considered in the Council’s 
best interests and to meet the Council’s 
obligations under relevant legislation
The execution of works or the supply of goods 
and services is required so urgently as not to 
permit compliance with the requirements of 
competition
Security works where the publication of 
documents or details in the tendering process 
could prejudice the security of SCC and Salford 
residents

Reason for CSO Exception
(select all that apply)

Procurements made through, or on behalf of, 
any consortium, local authority, statutory or 
similar body, provided that tenders or 
quotations are invited and contracts placed in 
accordance with national or EU legislation.

Funding Source Revenue Budget

Ethical Contractor Mayor’s Employment Charter
Committed to sign up to the Charter
Accredited Living Wage Employer x

Page 14



KEY DECISION: 

Yes 

DETAILS: 

1. Overview

1.1Mind in Salford were awarded the Salford Advocacy Hub contract following a 
tender process. The contract was awarded for three years with a possibility of 
a two year extension. The contract started on 1st April 2016 and is in the final 
year of the two year extension with an end date of 31st March 2021. This 
paper is seeking for the contract to be extended for an additional twelve 
months from 1st April 2021 to 30th March 2022. 

1.2  Due to COVID-19 a desk top review has been conducted to ensure that the 
request to extend the contract meets the following criteria. 

1.2.1 Current performance – The Salford Advocacy Hub is performing well 
and is widely considered a good service. Performance is monitored on a 
quarterly basis. The provider is exceeding commissioned capacity in some 
areas for example Independent Mental Capacity Advocacy (IMCA), this is 
well managed through the flexibility of the service as advocates are trained to 
provide different types of advocacy, and this helps Mind to manage capacity 
across advocacy.   

1.2.2 Current Model – The model that is being used is working well. It is 
outreach focused, proactive and responsive to people’s needs. There is 
dedicated capacity in the hospital wards; each of the care homes has a 
dedicated advocate and Mind in Salford frequently hold awareness raising 
events across health and social care teams in Salford. The advocates are 
trained to provide different types of advocacy this means that Mind in Salford 
is able to manage capacity and provide a flexible service. 

1.2.3 Risks – No risks to service users and staff have been identified if the 
contract is extended. The feedback from service users is very positive. 

1.2.4 Budget – There will be no changes to the budget. 

2. Contract Extension

2.1There are a number of factors that are contributing to the request to extend 
the contract by 12 months. The current service specification that the service 
is working to has been attached for information (Appendix 1).

2.2  In July, 2018, the government published a Mental Capacity (Amendment) 
Bill, which passed into law May 2019. It replaces the Deprivation of Liberty 
Protection Safeguards (DoLS) with a scheme known as the Liberty Protection 
Safeguards (LPS). The LPS is intended to come into effect on the 1st October 
2020.

Page 15



It is anticipated that the LPS will have an impact on the Salford Advocacy 
Hub and that they are likely to see an increase in demand for IMCA. The 
government is currently developing an LPS draft Code of Practice which will 
provide an indication of how many people will require LPS authorisations, 
therefore enabling us to estimate how many advocacy hours might be 
required. It is unclear when the guidance will be released. Prior to COVID-19 
it was anticipated it would be released by June 2020, but this seems unlikely, 
therefore the target implementation date of 1st October 2020 will potentially 
be postponed, but this will need to be confirmed by the Department of Health 
& Social Care. By extending the Advocacy Hub contract by 12 months this 
will enable us to understand the LPS draft Code of Practice when it is 
released, review the impact the LPS will have on the advocacy service and 
help develop the required service model to undertake a procurement 
exercise. 

2.3  Mind in Salford will be taking over Carers Care Act Advocacy which is 
currently provided by Gaddum. The Carers Care Act Advocacy will be varied 
into Mind in Salford’s contract on 1st October 2020. It is unclear what the 
activity for this service will be. Gaddum reported that in 2018/19 they 
provided advocacy to 17 carers. It is anticipated that when Mind in Salford 
take over the contract that the activity will increase because of their proactive 
approaches to advocacy, particularly in inpatient hospital settings. In other 
advocacy services this includes having a advocates based at Woodlands, 
Meadowbrook, SRFT, Care Homes and the service being promoted across 
health and social care. Extending the Salford Advocacy Hub contract will 
enable us to understand what the demand for Carers Care Act Advocacy will 
be and factor this into a revised tender offer.

2.4  The children and young people’s advocacy contract ends on 31st March 
2022. Extending the Mind in Salford Advocacy Hub contract by 12 months to 
the 31st March 2022 will align the two contracts. This will allow for time to 
explore if it is feasible to bring the two contracts together and procure an All 
Age Salford Advocacy Hub. 

2.5  It was the intention to extend the Salford Advocacy Hub contract for 12 
months prior to COVID-19 pandemic for the reasons outlined above. 
However, in these times of uncertainty, the changing response to COVID-19 
does need to be considered. Mind in Salford provide a statutory service for 
the council and CCG. This will still be required during the COVID-19 situation. 
Mind in Salford’s response to COVID-19 is for all advocates to work from 
home and this is being supported through the provision of work mobile 
phones to enable advocates to keep in touch with service users. Where 
required the advocates will see a service user face to face with appropriate 
considerations for the safety of the service user and staff member. Mind in 
Salford have created a COVID-19 policy this includes offering a month full 
pay to staff in their six month probationary period.

If the Salford Advocacy Hub contract were to be tendered at this time the 
tendering process would need to start in May 2020 to ensure a new contract 
and potentially provider are in place from 01 April 2021. This could be 

Page 16



difficult due to the current uncertainty about the impact of COVID-19 and 
how long the affects will last. The Cabinet Office have released 
‘Procurement Policy Note 01/20: Responding to COVID-19’, it sets out 
guidance on the public procurement regulations and responding to the 
current COVID-19 outbreak. This covers extending or modifying a contract 
during its term (regulation 72(1)). 

3. Best Value

3.1 Extending the contract for 12 months will provide the opportunity to better 
understand the additional demand on the service following changes to the 
LPS Code of Protections, and better understand what the Councils statutory 
responsibilities are in relation to this. It will also enable a better understanding 
in the demand for Care Act Advocacy for carers and will align with the CYP 
contract, providing an opportunity to explore an all age provision. Mind in 
Salford are considered a well-regarded provider and the Salford Advocacy 
Hub is considered to be a good service.

3.2 Extending the contract for 12 months represents best value to the council 
and CCG because it will hopefully get us past the uncertainty of the COVID-
19 outbreak.   

4. Procurement Plans 

4.1Depending on the impact of COVID-19 the plan would be to start reviewing 
Salford’s Advocacy Hub from April 2021. Following the review a new service 
specification will be developed and procurement timeline agreed in 2021 to 
ensure that the new service goes live from 1st April 2022.

4.2 If Procurement Board do not agree to extend the Salford Advocacy Hub 
contract by 12 months there is still time to complete a service review starting 
in May 2020 and then go out to tender for a new service that will start 1st 
April 2021, however this will have significant challenges due to capacity and 
response to COVID-19. 

5. Social Value

5.1 The service specification has a section relating to ‘Volunteers and Social 
Value’, see appendix 1. Mind in Salford have demonstrated social value 
throughout their contract by raising awareness about the Salford Advocacy 
Hub throughout health and social care. The service proactively outreach into 
care homes, SRFT, Woodlands, GP practices etc. this ensures that more 
people are able to access the service. Salford Advocacy Hub are 
commissioned to provide non-statutory advocacy which means that a 
considerable amount of preventative work can be undertaken for example 
supporting people back into work or addressing housing issues which 
supports social value. The service regularly provides placements to Salford 
University Social Care students. 

Page 17

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/873521/PPN_01-20_-_Responding_to_COVID19.v5__1_.pdf


5.2 All staff members have a robust training programme for the year this 
includes, but is not limited to gaining further advocacy qualifications, mental 
health first aid, suicide prevention and autism awareness training. 

5.3 Mind in Salford has developed a #Mind service user group that meets on a 
monthly basis to share experiences and provide support to each other. This 
group have also acted as a consultation group for the development of the all 
age mental health strategy. Mind in Salford also offer volunteering 
opportunities and they recently became registered as a ‘Real Living Wage’ 
employer. 

6. Contract Monitoring 

6.1 The contract is currently monitored through robust quarterly meetings. Mind 
in Salford submit a monitoring report that provides information about the 
different type of advocacy that Mind in Salford Provide, this is split into 
statutory advocacy: Independent Mental Capacity Advocacy (IMCA), 
Independent Mental Health Advocacy (IMHA), Care Act Advocacy and NHS 
Complaints, and non-statutory Community Advocacy. The report provides 
the following information for each area:

a) Total number of clients
b) Referrals brought forward 
c) New referrals 
d) Cases closed
e) Referral response times
f) Total distribution of hours
g) Mean hours per case
h) Details of any complaints /compliments received
i) Details of any safeguarding matters
j) Breakdown of people accessing the service by 

o client group
o age 
o gender 
o ethnicity 
o religion 
o sexual identity

k) Case studies

The monitoring report includes outcome measures and service user 
feedback. There is also a section on staff development, service awareness 
raising, capacity, complaints and compliments. Monitoring information has 
been detailed and provides assurance of a well performing service. 

6.2 Mind in Salford submits a separate Safeguarding Addendum report that 
provides information about IMCA Adult Protection Care Act Safeguarding 
Cases the advocates have worked on in the quarter. This feeds in to the 
wider Adult Safeguarding Board and has influenced positive changes in 
practice.  

Page 18



6.3 The reporting schedule outlined above will continue in the 12 month 
extension. The service will be reporting on the Carers Care Act Advocacy 
service separately to enable us to monitor Carers Care Act Advocacy activity 
as this will be a new service that they are picking up from 1st October 2020. 
The IMCA DOLs will also be monitored closely to understand the impact of 
the changes to LPS code of Protection.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

List the strategies, plan or programme to which the project/scheme/service or 
purchase of goods specifically relates.

 All Age Mental Health Commissioning Strategy 2019-2024

 Salford Carers Strategy 2019 – 2024

 Greater Manchester Learning Disability Strategy 2018

 Making Greater Manchester Autism Friendly 2019-2022 (version 10)

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  

EIA Screening Form has been completed with a view of not completing a full EIA has 
been submitted to the CCG Inclusion Lead for approval 30th April 2020.  When a full 
procurement exercise is undertaken, a full EIA would be appropriate. 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: If the contract is extended by 12 months this would be low 
risk as statutory duties would continue to be fulfilled. If it is decided to not extend the 
contract and go out to procurement, due to potential delays as a result of COVID-19 
there would be a high risk of delays in award and this would create significant 
challenges due to the potential for disruption to the Salford Advocacy Hub as a 
statutory service.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

The Budget that will meet the cost of the scheme is part Integrated Fund and part 
People Adults revenue budget. There are no changes to the current financial 
envelope. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by the Shared Legal Service

Ordinarily when commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or 
the execution of works the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the 
Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR) as well as the provisions of its own 

Page 19



Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best 
and Social value. In addition, the Regulations require that contracting authorities 
treat candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent 
manner, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge. 
However in exceptional circumstances where the CSO’s permit, the Council may 
dispense with strict compliance, and the report sets out the reasons for the request 
for the exception, in accordance with paragraph 3.1 of CSO’s. Whilst exceptions to 
CSO’s may be authorised by an approval from the Procurement Board, there is still a 
risk of challenge from aggrieved providers if the usual tender process has not been 
followed on the basis that it ought to have been advertised and put out to 
competition.
The risk of challenge increases with the value and duration of a proposed contract 
being awarded. Here the period proposed is short and is for a very low value, with a 
very tight time scale for delivery. Accordingly the risk of any such challenge may be 
regarded as extremely low, particularly in the current circumstances.

In responding to COVID-19, the Council may enter into contracts without competing or 
advertising the requirement so long as they are able to demonstrate that there is 
genuine reason for urgency and the events were unforeseeable. Following the Cabinet 
Office guidelines Regulation 72 of PCR specifically sets out where contracts may be 
modified without a new procurement procedure.   

The following conditions will apply: 
 

(i) the need for modification has been brought about by circumstances which 
a diligent contracting authority could not have foreseen;  

(ii) (ii) the modification does not alter the overall nature of the contract; (iii) 
any increase in price does not exceed 50% of the value of the original 
contract or framework agreement 

This justification demonstrates that the decision to award this particular contract was 
related to the COVID-19 outbreak, and having has considered the circumstances in 
this matter and concluded that the recommendation to award the Salford Advocacy 
Hub contract to MIND is considered to be of least risk and of most benefit to the 
Council.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Stephen Thynne, Strategic Finance Manager, Tel: 
0161 778 0244

This report requests an exception to contractual standing orders to award a contract 
for the Salford Advocacy Hub to Mind in Salford. The contract is from 1st April 2021 
and has an annual value of £391K, this includes the transfer of responsibility in 
relation to Carers Care Act Advocacy. Sufficient funding has been earmarked for this 
contract and is part from the adults section of the Integrated Fund and part from the 
People Adults revenue budget.

Page 20



PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Christopher Conway 

When the contract was originally procured and awarded this was for an initial term of 
three years with an option to extend for a further two years which was due to expire 
on the 31st March 2021. Procurement are happy to approve the recommendation to 
award a contract under an exception for a further 12 months until 31st March 2022 for 
the reasons stated in the report.

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Not applicable

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  

The service is based in Salford and advocates work in locations across Salford. This 
includes places like SRFT, Woodlands and Meadowbrook. Having advocates based 
in locations where they see clients quickly cuts down on travelling. The service is 
part of the GM Advocacy Cross Boundary Protocol / Collaboration Agreement. The 
purpose of the agreement is that people out of area within GM requiring advocacy 
are seen by the advocacy local provider. This reduces advocates travelling out of 
area to see service users requiring advocacy and therefore is more efficient in 
relation to travel and carbon footprint. 

Mind in Salford have an Environmental Policy in place that they work to, see 
appendix 2. 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Not applicable.

CONTACT OFFICER:  Clare Mayo
TELEPHONE NUMER: 0161 212 4236

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): The service is provided to all the wards 
in Salford. 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



V 7/11/11

SERVICE SPECIFICATION
PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

 SPECIFICATION, QUALITY AND PRODUCTIVITY
SECTION 1 – SPECIFICATION

Service Salford Advocacy Hub
Commissioner Lead Salford City Council – Community Health & Social Care

Period 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2019, with an option to extend for an 
additional two years

1)  Purpose

1.1 Background & Rationale for the development of the Salford Advocacy Hub 

In 2014 a review was undertaken regarding the range of adult advocacy provision that Salford City 
Council and Salford Clinical Commissioning Group commissions.  This review found that Salford 
commissioned a range of advocacy provision to support the health and social care needs of the local 
population via four separate contracts with four separate organisations, namely:

 Independent Mental Capacity Advocacy (IMCA)
 Independent Mental Health Advocacy (IMHA)
 NHS Complaints Advocacy
 Generic Community (non-statutory) Advocacy and Care Act Advocacy.  

Demand for advocacy services from users of health and social care services is increasing, not just 
locally but nationally.  The Care Act 2014 brought in new statutory obligations for Local Authorities to 
enable eligible service users and carers access to independent advocacy and the 2014 Supreme 
Court Judgement regarding Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DOLS) has seen an increase in 
demand for IMCA interventions. Add in welfare reforms, significant areas of service redesign, 
changes in eligibility criteria and cuts to public services and more people than ever are seeking an 
independent voice to speak up for, or with, them.  

Hence the need to develop a strategic approach to the way advocacy is commissioned in Salford so 
as to create the flexibility and capacity to future-proof these services, meet this increase in demand 
and at the same time provide an improved service user experience.       

The decision to bring these services together under a single contract to create a single Salford 
Advocacy Hub is felt to be beneficial in that it would : 
 

 Provide a single point of contact for all advocacy queries/referrals 
 Provide a clearer pathway and fewer transition points between services - e.g. if someone has 

an IMHA but then comes off a Mental Health Act Section, they could still keep the same 
advocate rather than having to be transferred to another service and another advocate.

 Maintain a local Salford-based service which understands and responds to the needs of 
Salford people and Salford services. 

 Make better use of this critical mass – e.g. having IMHA's trained as IMCAs and vice versa 
 Provide greater flexibility – enabling greater scope to move resources within the Hub at times 

of increased demand for one type of advocacy provision.   
 Provide more reassurance from a future-proofing perspective - by providing a more robust and 

flexible service to meet demand
 Provide a more cost effective service – it is expected that bringing the services together will 

bring economies of scale and so will see an increase in referrals, within the comparable 
financial envelope, and a decrease in costs per case

Page 23



V 7/11/11
1.2 Aims 
To provide an advocacy service to adults with health and social care needs (comprising adults with 
learning difficulties, mental health problems, physical and sensory, autistic spectrum conditions and 
older  people) living in Salford, which adheres to the following definition of advocacy:

“Advocacy can be defined as an individual being supported to express views, communicate choices 
and receive services or participation as a result.  It promotes social inclusion and equality”.

Delivering the Choice & Voice Agenda: the role of independent advocacy services, August 2008, 
Disability Rights Commission.

1.3 Evidence Base
There is a significant evidence base which highlights the importance and value of effective advocacy 
services and the role they play in developing services which are personalised and meet the needs, 
interests and rights of people using health and social care services.  

 Mental Capacity Act 2005.
 Mental Health Act 1983 as amended in 2007
 Health and Social Care Act 2012
 Care Act 2014
 Disability Discrimination Act 1995
 Data Protection Act 1998
 Care Standards Act 2000
 No Health Without Mental Health (DH 2011)
 NHS Operating Framework
 Best Practice in Managing Risk (DH, 2007)
 Delivering better Mental Health outcomes for people of all ages ( DH 2011) 
 Valuing People Now (2009)
 National Service Framework for Older People
 Improving the Life Chances of Disabled People (2005)
 Think Local Act Personal (2011)
 Our Health Our Care Our Say (2006)
 Autism Act 2009

1.4 General Overview
Advocacy Services work to help people say what they want, meet their rights, represent their interests 
and obtain services they need.  The Salford Advocacy Hub will provide advocacy for people qualifying 
for the following statutory advocacy interventions  (further detail on each of the different types of 
advocacy interventions are provided in Section 2):

Advocacy Type Description
Independent 
Mental Capacity 
Advocacy (IMCA)

The Mental Capacity Act 2005 makes it a legal requirement for people 
lacking mental capacity to have independent advocacy when there are 
no known relatives or close friends to speak for them.  The Local 
Authority is required to commission an Independent Mental Capacity 
Advocacy (IMCA) service from an independent organisation.

The IMCA Service must be a generic service, for people aged 16 years 
and above and for a wide variety of needs.  It will include people with 
learning disabilities, dementia, mental health needs and acquired brain 
injury and others who may require it including those covered by the 
extended provisions of the Mental Capacity Act 2005.

Independent 
Mental Health 

From April 2009, statutory access to an Independent Mental Health 
Advocate (IMHA) has been available to patients subject to certain 

Page 24



V 7/11/11
Advocacy (IMHA) aspects of the Mental Health Act 1983.

Patients, who are eligible to use IMHA services, i.e. qualifying patients, 
are those patients:

• Detained under the MHA (even if they are currently on leave of 
absence from hospital) apart from
those patients detained under sections 4, 5(2), 5(4), 135 or 136;
• Conditionally discharged restricted patients;
• Subject to Guardianship under the Act; or
• On Supervised Community Treatment (SCT).

as well as patients not covered by any of the above but who are:

• Being considered for a treatment to which section 57 applies (“a section 
57 treatment”);
• Under 18 and being considered for electro-convulsive therapy or any 
other treatment to which
Section 58A applies (“a section 58A treatment”).

NHS Complaints 
Advocacy 

The Health and Social Care Act 2012, Section 185, inserts section 223A 
into the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 
which requires local authorities to make arrangements for the provision 
of independent advocacy to people who wish to make a complaint about 
a NHS service. Within the meaning of the above legislation, the term 
advocacy services relate only to the provision of assistance for 
individuals making or intending to make a NHS related complaint which 
includes a complaint to the Health Service Ombudsman. 

Care Act 
Advocacy 

The duty applies to adults, children approaching transition, carers and 
young carers.  The focus of advocacy requirements under the Act are 
around support and representation in the following;

 a needs assessment
 a carers  assessment
 the preparation of a care and support plan
 a review of care and support plan
 a child’s needs assessment
 a child’s carers needs assessment
 a young carers assessment

The duty to provide advocacy under the Care Act provides support to:

 people who have capacity but who have substantial difficulty in 
being involved in the care and support ‘processes’;

 people in relation to their assessment and/or care and support 
planning regardless of whether a change of accommodation is 
being considered for the person;

 people in relation to the review of a care and/or support plan;
 people in relation to safeguarding processes (though IMCAs are 

involved if protective measures are being proposed for a person 
who lacks capacity);

 carers who have substantial difficulty in engaging – whether or 
not they have capacity);

 people for whom there is someone who is appropriate to consult 
for the purpose of best interests decisions under the Mental 
Capacity Act, but who is not able and/or willing to facilitate the 

Page 25



V 7/11/11
person’s involvement in the local authority process.

However, it is not the intention that this service will only focus on Salford’s statutory responsibilities.  A 
significant amount of preventative work is addressed by providing advocacy interventions outside of 
these statutory remits. Consequently, the Salford Advocacy Hub will also provide a generic, non-
statutory Advocacy service to meet a range of desired outcomes for (comprising adults with learning 
difficulties, mental health problems, physical and sensory, autistic spectrum conditions and older  
people) living in Salford.

The interventions will broadly fall into the following categories:

a)  Case Advocacy 
When someone advocates with or on behalf of the service user on a particular issue to achieve 
specific objectives.  The advocate will work on a 1:1 basis with people to support them to understand 
options, be in control of their lives and work on particular issues to achieve certain objectives.

b)  Self Advocacy 
When the intervention of the service via an Advocacy Worker gives individuals the appropriate advice 
and support to develop the skills to advocate for themselves.  

Self Advocacy can often be an outcome of Case Advocacy where the individual, through the 
intervention of a Case Advocate, develops their skills and feels more empowered to advocate on 
behalf of themselves.

The service will develop an intervention plan in partnership with the service user which clearly details 
the reasons, aims and expected outcomes from the advocacy intervention.  This will enable the 
service to manage expectation and workloads effectively. 

The service will act completely impartially on behalf of its service users, representing the interests of 
the service user themselves.  The service shall have in place a code of conduct and work to ensure 
that the Salford Advocacy Charter (outlined below) is being adhered to.

1.5  Salford Advocacy Charter.
Having listened to local people about what is important to them in an advocacy service, Salford City 
Council and Salford Clinical Commissioning Group has developed the Salford Advocacy Charter.

This charter identifies the expectations of the Advocacy service and should be read alongside the 
‘Action for Advocacy’ advocacy charter 1.

People

Your advocate will be . . . . .

 Respectful
 Non-judgemental
 Polite
 Calm
 Honest
 Understanding
 Supportive
 Friendly
 Reliable

Skills
1 http://www.aqvx59.dsl.pipex.com/Advocacy%20Charter2004.pdf

Page 26

http://www.aqvx59.dsl.pipex.com/Advocacy%20Charter2004.pdf


V 7/11/11

Your advocate will be . . . . .

 Trained
 Have great listening skills
 Able to give information in a variety of ways – so you get the information you need in the way 

you need it.
 Able to treat each person as an individual, understanding that every person is unique.
 An enabler – they will work to give you the confidence and skills to do as much for yourself as 

you can now and in the future.
 Have great communication skills and the ability to communicate in different ways with different 

people.
 Aware of how your condition could affect your life and your choices. 
 Experienced, or have the support of an experienced advocate if they are new to the role.

What they will do

Your advocate will . . . . .

 Give you the information you ask for or they think you need.
 Support you to speak up for yourself, or speak up for you if you do not feel able to speak up 

for yourself.   They will challenge services with or for you if that is what you want.
 Support you to prepare for meetings.
 Come to meetings with you.
 Meet with you in a place that works for you.
 Offer practical help, not just advice, when this is the right thing to do.

How they will do it.

Your advocacy service will . . . . .

 Be independent of local health services and the local council.
 Have enough advocates to provide a service to people who need it and are eligible.
 Make sure advocates have time to get to know you, and you them.
 Communicate well with other agencies and professionals.
 Make sure local people know about their service by advertising it in different ways.
 Get back to people quickly if they have asked for help.

1.6  Outcomes
The Salford Advocacy Hub will meet the following key outcomes:

 Salford Citizens will be represented and supported to express their views, needs, rights, 
preferences and decisions. 

 Salford Citizens will benefit from a range of approaches to meet different requirements, needs 
and service  user groups 

 Salford Citizens will have greater understanding of, and involvement in the planning of, their  
care and support.

 Salford Citizens will have greater choice and control over their own lives and the support they 
receive

 Salford Citizens will have greater confidence, capacity and skills to articulate their needs, with 
or without the assistance of an Advocate.

 Salford Citizens and their families will be better equipped to advocate for themselves in the 
future   

Page 27



V 7/11/11

2. Scope

2.1 Service Description

The purpose of the Salford Advocacy Hub is that there will be a more fluid and person-centred 
response to advocacy and that a range of advocates will be skilled and trained in advocating for 
people under all of the various statutory obligations (IMCA, IMHA, Care Act and NHS Complaints).  

In Section 3 the specification will outline more detail on how it is anticipated that this service will be 
delivered.  However, it is important to also detail some of the specifics around each of the forms of 
advocacy, which this Section outlines.

2.1.1 Independent Mental Health Advocacy (IMHA)

N.B. This section  should also be read in conjunction with regulations, standards and 
guidance regarding IMHA – see link below
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/+/dh.gov.uk/en/healthcare/mentalhealth/informationonthem
entalhealthact/dh_091895

Many people with an acute mental health problem may experience heightened vulnerability, prejudice 
and difficulties with communication.  Many people affected by mental ill-health also have difficulty 
getting their views about their mental health care needs across to the providers of mental health 
services.  Access to an advocacy service ensures that individuals are able to positively engage with 
services, making the most effective use of the services available. 

From April 2009, statutory access to an Independent Mental Health Advocate (IMHA) has been 
available to patients subject to certain aspects of the Mental Health Act (MHA) 1983.

 Patients, who are eligible to use IMHA services, i.e. qualifying patients, are those patients:
 Detained under the MHA (even if they are currently on leave of absence from hospital) apart 

from
 those patients detained under sections 4, 5(2), 5(4), 135 or 136;
 Conditionally discharged restricted patients;
 Subject to Guardianship under the Act; or
 On Supervised Community Treatment (SCT).

as well as patients not covered by any of the above but who are:

 Being considered for a treatment to which section 57 applies (“a section 57 treatment”);
 Under 18 and being considered for electro-convulsive therapy or any other treatment to which

section 58A applies (“a section 58A treatment”).

The aims of the IMHA Service is to ensure ‘qualifying patients’ have access to advocacy services that 
help them say what they want, meet their rights, represent their interests and obtain services that 
meet their needs. The purpose of the IMHA service is to help patients to fully participate in decisions 
about their care and treatment

While the focus of an IMHA intervention will be surrounding the mental health care and treatment, the 
service is expected to respond to the issues that are paramount to the service user and therefore it is 
expected that the advocacy service will address a broad range of issues e.g. housing and social care 
issues, which will require building effective partnerships with other advocacy services. 

An IMHA service supports qualifying individuals to understand the Act and their own rights and 
safeguards.  This may include support in obtaining information about any of the following:

 Patient’s rights under the Act
 Provisions of the Act under which the individual qualifies for an IMHA

Page 28

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/+/dh.gov.uk/en/healthcare/mentalhealth/informationonthementalhealthact/dh_091895
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/+/dh.gov.uk/en/healthcare/mentalhealth/informationonthementalhealthact/dh_091895


V 7/11/11

 Conditions or restrictions which affect the individual
 Medical treatment being received, discussed or proposed and the reasons for this
 Legal authority for providing such treatment
 Requirements of the Act which apply to treatment

It is also expected that the service will demonstrate significant service user involvement in the 
management and delivery of the service.  The service will also explore ways of building capacity in 
developing peer advocacy.

2.1.2  Independent Mental Capacity Advocacy (IMCA)

N.B. This section  should also be read in conjunction with the ‘Mental Capacity Act 2005 Code 
of Practice’  and ‘Making Decisions: the Independent Mental Capacity Advocate Service’
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/mental-capacity-act-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-mental-capacity-advocates

The Mental Capacity Act (2005) makes it a legal requirement for people lacking mental capacity to 
make decisions themselves in specific situations to have independent advocacy when there are no 
known relatives or friends that it would be appropriate to consult about those decisions.  The Council 
is required to commission independent advocacy from independent organisations.

An Independent Mental Capacity Advocate must be provided where needed when decisions are being 
made regarding:

 An NHS body is proposing to provide serious medical treatment (as specified in the Act) ;  and
 A Local Authority or NHS Body is proposing to arrange accommodation (or a change of 

accommodation) in a care home or hospital and the person will stay in the care home for more 
than 8 weeks or stay in hospital for longer than 28 days.

 An appropriate authority must instruct an IMCA to support people to whom acts or decisions 
are proposed under sections 37, 38 and 39 relate or persons who fall within section 39a, 39c 
or 39d of the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards.

Under the MCA people who lack capacity and are alleged to be responsible for abuse are entitled to 
the help of an IMCA to support them and represent them in the enquiries that are taking place.

An Independent Mental Capacity Advocate may be instructed where decisions are being made 
regarding:

i) Care reviews, where there is no-one else to consult
ii) Adult Safeguarding cases, whether or not family, friends or others are involved. 

The Mental Capacity Act 2005 is underpinned by five key principles:

 Principle 1: ‘A person must be assumed to have capacity unless it is established that he 
lacks capacity’ (Section 1(2))

 Principle 2: ‘A person is not to be treated as unable to make a decision unless all 
practicable steps to help him to do so have been taken without success’ (section 1(3))

 Principle 3: ‘A person is not to be treated as unable to make a decision merely because he 
makes an unwise decision.’ (Section 1(4) 

 Principle 4: ‘An act done, or decision made, under this Act for or on behalf of person who 
lacks capacity must be done, or made, in his best interests’. (Section 1(5))

 Principle 5: ‘Before the act is done, or the decision is made, regard must be had to whether 
the purpose for which it is needed can be as effectively achieved in a way that is less 
restrictive of the person’s rights and freedom of action.’ (Section 1(6)) 

The individuals accessing the IMCA Service shall be Service Users of sixteen (16) years or over or in 
the case of Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards the person will be eighteen (18) years or over.

Page 29

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/mental-capacity-act-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/mental-capacity-act-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-mental-capacity-advocates
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-mental-capacity-advocates
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-mental-capacity-advocates


V 7/11/11

There are 3 specific IMCA DoLS Roles:

i) IMCA 39A is instructed where a request for a Standard Authorisation has been submitted 
to the Supervisory Body (Salford Council or Salford NHS) for a person who does not have 
anyone who can advocate on their behalf. 

ii) IMCA 39C is instructed for a person subject to a Standard Authorisation to Deprive them of 
their Liberty in a registered care home or hospital where it has not been possible to 
appoint an unpaid Relevant Person's Representative (RPR).  The period of the instruction 
of an IMCA 39C should be for the shortest possible duration until an appropriate paid RPR 
can be appointed by the Supervisory Body.

iii) IMCA 39D – the Supervisory Body can instruct an IMCA 39D for a person subject to a 
Standard Authorisation to Deprive them of their Liberty in a registered care home or 
Hospital.  An IMCA 39D can be instructed to support the person subject to a Standard 
Authorisation and/or their unpaid Relevant Person’s Representative. 

Paid RPR Role and Litigation Friend: Nationally there has been an increase in IMCAs acting as paid 
RPRs particularly following the case of AJ v A [2015] EWCOP 5 [2015] WLR (D)64. The key function 
of this role would be to support the person subject to a Standard Authorisation as set out by the 
Mental Capacity (Deprivation of Liberty: Appointment of Relevant Person’s Representative) 
Regulations 2008. This means the paid RPR must be:

 Over 18 years of age
 Able to keep in contact with the relevant person, and
 Willing to be appointed.

They must not be:

 Financially interested in the relevant person’s managing authority
 A relative of a person with financial interest as stated above
 Employed by or providing services to the care home where the person is residing
 Employed by the hospital in a role that could be related to treatment and care of the 

person, or
 Employed to work in the relevant person’s supervisory body 

(Refer to MCA code of practice Ch7 pp76-85) 

If a person is deprived of their liberty in Salford, having being placed there by a local authority other 
than Salford. The IMCA provider may be able to offer them the option of Paid RPR role which will be 
an arrangement separate from this specification.

Judges in Court of Protection cases have often supported the role of Litigation Friend being carried 
out by IMCAs. There is no guidance contained in the MCA (2005) or in any of the supporting materials 
as to how a Litigation Friend should discharge their duties. This area of the law is not straightforward 
and the Litigation Friend should seek specific legal advice both at the outset and in relation to any 
specific points that may arise. 

The key functions of an IMCA are set out in Section 36(2) of the Mental Capacity Act 2005.  They 
include:

 representing and supporting the Service User
 obtaining and evaluating information
 ascertaining the Service User’s wishes and feelings, as far as possible
 ascertaining alternative courses of action – for example, looking at different care 

arrangements or residential homes
 obtaining a further medical opinion, if necessary.

Page 30



V 7/11/11

In order to carry out this task, the IMCA will need to investigate the particular circumstances of the 
Service User in relation to other aspects of the best interest checklist.  These include:

 whether the Service User is likely to regain capacity in relation to the matter in question, and if 
so, when that is likely to be;

 the need to permit and encourage the Service User to participate, or to improve his/her ability 
to participate, as fully as possible in any act done for and any decision affecting him/her;

 so far as these can be ascertained, the past and present wishes and feelings of the Service 
User, any beliefs and values that may have influenced the decision in question, and the 
factors which the Service User would be likely to consider if able to do so;

 any other relevant factors, including for example, the need to promote the human rights of the 
Service User.

In addition, the IMCA will need to consider whether the principles set out in Section 1 of the Mental 
Capacity Act 2005 have been complied with.  In particular:

 where there is more than one course of action or a choice of decisions to be made, the IMCA 
will need to check whether all possible options or alternatives have been explored and 
whether the proposed option would be the least restrictive of the Service User’s future choices 
or would allow him/her the most freedom.

 they should also check that the Service User has been given adequate support to try to make 
his or her own decision and that he or she does in fact lack capacity in relation to the decision 
in question.

Section 35(6) of the Mental Capacity Act 2005 provides IMCAs with certain powers to enable them to 
carry out their functions under the Act.  These include:

 the right to visit and have a private discussion with the Service User concerned; and
 the right to examine any records (such as clinical records, care plans or social care 

assessment documents) which are considered relevant to the decision or action in question.

The individuals accessing the IMCA Service shall be Service Users of sixteen (16) years or over or in 
the case of Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards the person will be eighteen (18) years or over.

2.1.3  Care Act Advocacy

N.B. This section  should also be read in conjunction with the Care Act Guidance - see the link 
below 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/315993/Care-Act-
Guidance.pdf

The duty applies to adults, children approaching transition, carers and young carers.  However carers 
and young carers are not in scope for this services and their need will be met via a specific services 
commissioned for carers. 

The focus of advocacy requirements under the Care Act are around support and representation in the 
following;

 a needs assessment under section 9 of the Care Act; 
 a carer’s assessment under section 10; 
 the preparation of a care and support plan or support plan under section 25; 
 a review of care and support plan or support plan under section 27; 
 a child’s needs assessment under section 60; 
 a child’s carer’s assessment under section 62;
 a young carer’s assessment under section 65.

Page 31

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/315993/Care-Act-Guidance.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/315993/Care-Act-Guidance.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/315993/Care-Act-Guidance.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/315993/Care-Act-Guidance.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/315993/Care-Act-Guidance.pdf


V 7/11/11
2

As part of the assessment and the care and support plan, the local authority must have regard to the 
need to help protect people from abuse and neglect. They should assist the person to identify any 
risks and ways to manage them. They should also assist the person to decide how much risk they can 
manage. The local authority must also have regard to ensuring that any restriction on the person’s 
rights or freedom of action is kept to the minimum necessary. Restrictions should be carefully 
considered and frequently reviewed. Any potential deprivation of liberty must be authorised, either by 
a Deprivation of Liberty Authorisation by the local authority or the Court of Protection under the 
Deprivation of Liberty

Advocacy under the duty flowing from the Care Act is similar in many ways to independent advocacy 
under the Mental Capacity Act (MCA). Regulations have been designed to enable independent 
advocates to be able to carry out both roles. However, the duty to provide independent advocacy 
under the Care Act is broader and provides support to:

 people who have capacity but who have substantial difficulty in being involved in the care and 
support ‘processes’;

 people in relation to their assessment and/or care and support planning regardless of whether 
a change of accommodation is being considered for the person;

 people in relation to the review of a care and/or support plan;
 people in relation to safeguarding processes (though IMCAs are involved if protective 

measures are being proposed for a person who lacks capacity);
 people for whom there is someone who is appropriate to consult for the purpose of best 

interests decisions under the Mental Capacity Act, but who is not able and/or willing to 
facilitate the person’s involvement in the local authority process.

Where a local authority is carrying out enquiries in relation to abuse or neglect and the adult has 
substantial difficulty in being involved and there is no one appropriate to support them, the local 
authority must arrange for an independent advocate to represent them for the purpose of facilitating 
their involvement (sections 14.43 and 14.67 Statutory Guidance to the 2014 Care Act). What happens 
as a result of a safeguarding enquiry should reflect the adults wishes wherever possible as stated by 
them or by their representative or advocate (14:66; 14:80 and 14:81).

Local Authorities will need to determine what determines ‘substantial difficulty’ by assessing the 
individual’s ability to; 

 understand relevant information 
 retain information 
 use or weigh up the information 
 communicate their views, wishes and feelings

Before referring for an Advocate the Local Authority must consider whether there is an ‘appropriate’ 
individual via the following considerations;

 It cannot be someone who is already providing the person with care or treatment in a 
professional capacity

 The person must agree to the particular individual supporting them
 That they have the knowledge and ability to support the person’s active involvement with the 

local authority processes

In general, a person who has substantial difficulty in being involved in their assessment, plan and 
review will only become eligible for an advocate where there is no one appropriate to support their 
involvement.   The exceptions are:

2 Advocacy regarding carers assessments, child’s carers assessments and young carers assessments are not 
in scope for this contract – see section 4.6 

Page 32



V 7/11/11

 where the exercising of the assessment or planning function might result in placement in NHS-
funded provision in either a hospital for a period exceeding four weeks or in a care home for a 
period of eight weeks or more and the local authority believes that it would be in the best 
interests of the individual to arrange an advocate;

 where there is a disagreement, relating to the individual, between the local authority and the 
appropriate person whose role it would be to facilitate the individual’s involvement, and the 
local authority and the appropriate person agree that the involvement of an independent 
advocate would be beneficial to the individual.

 where a deprivation of liberty may be the result of the proposed care and support plan.

Adults in custody are entitled to the support of an independent advocate during needs assessments 
and care and support planning and reviews of plans if they would have significant difficulty in being 
involved in the process, as in the community.  Since Forest Bank Prison is located in Salford it this 
would be an additional expected responsibility of the Advocacy service. 

2.1.4  NHS Complaints Advocacy

N.B. This section should also be read in conjunction with the ‘Commissioning Independent 
NHS Complaints Advocacy’ - see the link below 
http://www.local.gov.uk/c/document_library/get_file?uuid=f07bf24c-cd0c-458f-8672-
419f26a0831a&groupId=10180

The Health and Social Care Act 2012, Section 185, inserts section 223A into the Local Government 
and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 which requires local authorities to make arrangements for 
the provision of independent advocacy to people who wish to make a complaint about a NHS service. 
Within the meaning of the above legislation, the term advocacy services relate only to the provision of 
assistance for individuals making or intending to make a NHS related complaint which includes a 
complaint to the Health Service Ombudsman. Please note that this is separate from complaints 
arrangements in respect of adult social care.

The same legislation also makes provision for Local Healthwatch organisations to replace the Local 
Involvement Networks (LINks) as the new consumer champion for health & social care services. Local 
Healthwatch organisations will be required to signpost individuals making or intending to make a NHS 
related complaint complainant to this advocacy service.

The core purpose of the service is to ensure that Service Users have access to the support they need 
to clarify and articulate their concerns, to navigate the complaints system and to pursue a resolution 
to the satisfaction of the Service User or the exhaustion of the process.  The service will play no role 
in relation to matters where a complainant determines to resort to direct legal action, other than 
appropriate signposting.

The graded intervention will follow the following structure;

 Level 1: Web-based & published information - Self help advocacy information i.e. website, 
basic guidance material, templates, directories of support organisations, leaflets, self-help 
packs, other published material.

 Level 2: Call Centre & web / e-mail response - Assisted information i.e. responding at 
distance to Service User needs / queries, e.g. to explore which route would be the best 
remedy for their circumstances, support to access information and frame complaint, providing 
templates and where necessary referring on to Level 3 or other relevant organisation as 
appropriate.

 Level 3: Nominated Advocate Support - Personalised Advocacy via a nominated advocate 
i.e. working with the Service User to develop and progress their complaint but with limited face 
to face contact. Providing practical assistance (i.e. templates, letter writing, form filling, 

Page 33

http://www.local.gov.uk/c/document_library/get_file?uuid=f07bf24c-cd0c-458f-8672-419f26a0831a&groupId=10180
http://www.local.gov.uk/c/document_library/get_file?uuid=f07bf24c-cd0c-458f-8672-419f26a0831a&groupId=10180
http://www.local.gov.uk/c/document_library/get_file?uuid=f07bf24c-cd0c-458f-8672-419f26a0831a&groupId=10180
http://www.local.gov.uk/c/document_library/get_file?uuid=f07bf24c-cd0c-458f-8672-419f26a0831a&groupId=10180


V 7/11/11
contacting third parties to seek information) but wherever possible working at distance via 
telephone, e-mail. 

 Level  4: Intensive Face to Face Support -  i.e. some Service Users will require more 
intensive advocacy support due to:

o The nature or complexity of their complaint
o The service user’s capacity to negotiate the complaint process i.e. people with limited 

confidence or emotional barriers, learning, literacy or communication difficulties, people 
whose first language is not English, people with mental health problems or frail elderly 
people or those who may be distressed due to illness or bereavement. (This is not an 
exclusive list)

Such Service Users may require more direct face to face advocacy support to clarify personal 
objectives, negotiate process, communicate with agencies by letter or telephone and support 
through local resolution processes, attendance at hearings and throughout the second stage 
of the complaints procedure

 Level 5: Specialist Advocacy Support - i.e. Some Service Users may require advocates with 
specialist knowledge of areas such as children’s rights, mental health, legal issues, refugee 
issues  or other specialist health environments, such as prisons, etc..

For avoidance of any doubt the NHS complaints process covers:

 All NHS Trusts and NHS Bodies including NHS Foundation Trusts
 Family Health Services provided for the NHS by GPs, Dentists, Opticians or Pharmacists.
 Primary Care Trusts / Clinical Commissioning Groups
 Private health care establishments if the treatment has been paid for by the NHS
 All other health services commissioned by NHS funding

2.1.5 Non-statutory Advocacy  

In addition to the range of statutory duties, the Advocacy service will also meet the needs of people 
who don’t meet the criteria for a form of statutory advocacy but who do require advocacy support 
regarding a health and social care issue, including:
 

i. Adults with learning difficulties
ii. Adults with mental health problems
iii. Adults with Autistic spectrum conditions
iv. Adults with physical and sensory disabilities
v. Older people  

The majority of this work will primarily be provided in the form of Case Advocacy with a view to people 
advocating for themselves in the future.  However, in some cases (e.g. learning disabilities) 
Commissioners may require the setting up of advocacy groups.  

The following criteria applies: 

 Adults from 18 years
 Salford residents and/or registered with a Salford GP
 That the person has a mental health problem, learning difficulty, physical and sensory 

disability or is an older person  

2.2 Accessibility/acceptability

Page 34



V 7/11/11

Service users must be Salford residents or registered with a Salford GP. 

In the case of IMCA referrals, the service user needs to be located in Salford at the time of the 
referral.

Referral routes into the service depend on the form of advocacy requested but will usually be a:
 
 Referral from health and social care services
 Referral from carers and  family members / friends
 Referral from any other voluntary / community sector bodies, as appropriate.
 Self referrals – where possible

The provider will need to be satisfied that referrals from sources other than self referral are with the 
consent and in the best interests of the individual.   

2.3 Whole System Relationships
The Advocacy Service will be part of a whole system model of care which enables people to have a 
say about their lives and/or have their need and best interest represented.  The Advocacy Service will 
work to a support plan which meets agreed needs and objectives.

2.4 Interdependencies

Advocates should seek to develop constructive working relationships with all stakeholders which 
would be expected to include the following (this list is not exhaustive).

 Health and Social Care Teams and services across all services areas 
 Advice and Information Services 
 Hospitals 
 Housing
 Community & Voluntary Sector
 Legal Services
 Healthwatch Salford 
 Carers Support Service
 Advice and Information Services
 GPs
 Dementia Support Services
 Stroke Support Services 

3.  Service Delivery

N.B. This section regarding service model and service delivery will be further populated in line 
with the model submitted by the successful organisation.  

3.1  Service Model
As highlighted in Section 1.1 Salford has identified the need to develop a strategic approach to the 
way advocacy is commissioned in Salford so as to create the flexibility and capacity to future-proof 
these services, meet this increase in demand and at the same time provide an improved service user 
experience.       

The decision to bring these services together under a single contract to create a single Salford 
Advocacy Hub is felt to be beneficial in that it would : 
 

 Provide  a single point of contact for all advocacy queries/referrals 

Page 35



V 7/11/11
 Provide a clearer pathway and fewer transition points between services - e.g. if someone has 

an IMHA but then comes off a Mental Health Act Section, they could still keep the same 
advocate rather than having to be transferred to another service and another advocate.

 Maintain a local Salford-based service which understands and responds to the needs of 
Salford people and Salford services. 

 Make better use of this critical mass – e.g. having IMHA's trained as IMCAs and vice versa 
 Provide greater flexibility – enabling us to have greater scope to move resources within the 

Hub at times of increased demand for one type of advocacy provision.   
 Provide more reassurance from a future-proofing perspective - by providing a more robust and 

flexible service to meet demand
 Provide a more cost effective service – it is expected that bringing the services together will 

bring economies of scale and so will see an increase in referrals, within the comparable 
financial envelope, and a decrease in costs per case

Consequently it is expected that the resulting service model will have the necessary flexibility and skill 
base to meet the expected benefits outlined above.

Table 1 outlines the anticipated indicative hours of advocacy support per case for each category of 
advocacy.  Table 2 outlines the anticipated annual demand by each category of advocacy.  

It should be noted that these hours are indicative and based in some cases on past 
performance data (e.g. IMHA), in some cases projected, but unknown, demand (e.g. Care Act 
Advocacy) and also anticipating potential increases in demand in advocacy categories (e.g. 
increasing IMCA demand following Supreme Court ruling).  The purpose of developing a 
single advocacy pathway is that it creates flexibility to respond at times of high demand in 
some advocacy categories and so the service model will need to demonstrate how it will build 
in this flexibility while also ensuring that all obligations are being met.

Table 1:  Anticipated average indicative hours of advocacy support per case 

IMCA 10 Hours
IMHA 10 Hours
Care Act Assessment 14 Hours
Care Act Review  6 Hours
Safeguarding  Enquiry 15 Hours
NHS Complaints 15 hours
Non Statutory Advocacy 10 hours

Table 2:  Anticipated annual demand by each advocacy category *workings in red via CM
 
Advocacy category Annual hours % of total 

hours
IMCA 3,500 Hours (approx. 350 

clients)
18%

IMHA 2,500 Hours (approx. 250 
clients) 

13%

Care Act Advocacy  (comprising 
assessment review and 
safeguarding) 

8,000 Hours (approx. 400 
clients based on 20 hrs for 
assessment and review)

41%

NHS Complaints 1,000 hours (approx. 66 
clients)

5%

Non Statutory Advocacy 4,500 hours  (approx. 450 
clients) 

23%

Page 36



V 7/11/11
While it is acknowledged that it may often be the non-statutory allocation that will be drawn on at 
times of high demand in other statutory advocacy interventions, Commissioners are keen that this is 
not always seen as the first resort as a significant amount of preventative work is addressed by 
providing advocacy interventions outside of these statutory remits. Consequently it is expected that all 
forms of advocacy are examined to determine demand and caseload at that time.   

It is also expected that the required training and awareness-raising, pertaining to these advocacy 
categories, will be undertaken within these indicative time allocations. 

The model is also expected to be able to meet the needs of a range of service users with health and 
social care needs which will require expertise and knowledge in certain areas to meet the expected 
skills and qualities outlined in the Salford Advocacy Charter in Section 1.5 of this specification.  

However, there are some areas where we know demand will be high and which merit a dedicated and 
more specialist approach. 

One of these is focussed on support for inpatients at Meadowbrook Acute Inpatient Hospital.  There 
has been an IMHA based there for a number of years and it is expected that given the widening of 
advocacy responsibility (beyond solely IMHA) expected from this service, at least 1 x WTE on-site 
Mental Health Advocate is merited to meet the advocacy needs of inpatients at Meadowbrook .

Another area which merits a dedicated advocate is for people with dementia, who have historically 
made up the vast majority of IMCA referrals and who are also likely to also make up a large number 
of Care Act referrals (not to mention some IMHA for those at Woodlands Hospital).  Whether this 
advocate is on-site at Woodlands or located elsewhere in the community is subject to further  
discussion.

There is also a case for a specific and dedicated resource for people with learning difficulties and also 
adults with autistic spectrum conditions where advocates possess the skills around Total 
Communication that make for an effective representative.

Consequently, the service model is expected to combine a generic approach to meet the range of 
advocacy interventions but at the same time ensure that there are specialist skills and approaches 
within the service to give consistency and the best possible service and outcomes. 

3.2  Requirements upon Advocates & the Advocacy Process
Once appointed, all independent advocates should be expected to achieve the National Qualification 
in Independent Advocacy (Level 3) within a year of being appointed.

The ‘Seventh Year of the Independent Mental Capacity Advocacy (IMCA) Service’ report identified 
training and Continuous Professional Development requirements for IMCAs.  The provider is 
expected to adhere to these minimum requirements 3 .    

The advocate must not be working for the local authority or local Health Trust, or for an organisation 
that is commissioned to carry out assessments, care and support plans or reviews for the local 
authority. Nor can an advocate be appointed if they are providing care or treatment to the individual in 
a professional or a paid capacity. 

Advocates will decide the best way of supporting and representing the person they are advocating for, 
always with regard to the wellbeing and interest (including their views, beliefs and wishes) of the 
person concerned. In addition, where practicable, they are expected to meet the person in private. 
During the initial visits, the Advocate will look out for the following:

 The Service User’s expression of mood and feelings.
 The Service User’s sensory activities, their use of sound, touch, hearing, tasting and smelling.

3 https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/416341/imca-report.pdf

Page 37

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/416341/imca-report.pdf


V 7/11/11

 The Service User’s body language, gestures and vocalisations.
 The Service User’s interactions with others.
 The Service User’s relationship to their environment and personal space.
 The Service User’s use of objects in their setting.
 The Service User’s opportunities for interaction.

Advocates will develop an intervention plan in partnership with the service user which clearly details 
the reasons, aims and expected outcomes from the advocacy intervention.  This will enable the 
service to manage expectation and workloads effectively. 

Where a person has capacity, the advocate should ask their consent to look at their records and to 
talk to their family, friends, paid carers and others who can provide information about their needs and 
wishes, their beliefs and values. Where a person does not have capacity to decide whether an 
advocate should look at their notes or talk to their family and friends, then the advocate can consult 
both the records and the family and others, but consulting the family and others only where the 
advocate considers this is appropriate and in the person’s best interests. 

Acting as an advocate for a person who has substantial difficulty in engaging with care and support 
processes is a responsible position. It includes: 

 Assisting a person to understand the assessment, care and support planning and review 
processes. This requires advocates to understand local authority and Health Trust policies and 
processes, the available assessment tools, the planning options, and the options available at 
the review of a care or support plan. It may involve advocates spending considerable time with 
the individual, considering their communications needs, their wishes and feelings and their life 
story, and using all this to assist the person to be involved and where possible to make 
decisions. 

 Assisting a person to communicate their views, wishes and feelings to the staff who are 
carrying out an assessment or developing a care or support plan or reviewing an existing plan. 

 Assisting a person to understand how their needs can be met by the local authority or Health 
Trust or otherwise – understanding for example how a plan can be personalised, how it can be 
tailored to meet specific needs, how it can be creative, inclusive, and how it can be used to 
promote a person’s rights to liberty and to family life.

 Assisting the person to make decisions about their care and support arrangements – assisting 
them to weigh up various care and support options and to choose the ones that best meet the 
person’s needs and wishes. 

 Assisting the person to understand their rights under relevant legislation (e.g  Care Act, Mental 
Capacity Act, Mental Health Act, Health & Social Care Act). Also assisting the person to 
understand their wider rights, including their rights to liberty and family life. A person’s rights 
are complemented by the local authority’s and Health Trusts duties, for example to involve the 
person, to meet needs in a way that is least restrictive of a person’s rights. 

 Assisting a person to challenge a decision made by the local authority and/or Health Trust; 
and where a person cannot challenge the decision even with assistance, then to challenge it 
on their behalf. 

If the Advocate considers that further information is required in order to form a view as to the Service 
User’s best interests, the following courses of action may be appropriate, according to the particular 
circumstances of the case:

 Where the Service User has communication difficulties, the Advocate may consider seeking 
specialist help, for example, from a speech therapist or translator.  

 The Advocate may wish to discuss possible options with other professionals or paid carers 
directly involved in providing care or treatment for the Service User, bearing in mind the duty 
of confidentiality towards the Service User.

 Where the decision or action concerns medical treatment, the Advocate may consider seeking 
a second opinion from a doctor with an appropriate specialism as to whether the proposed 

Page 38



V 7/11/11
treatment is necessary and in the Service User’s best interests.

There will be times when an advocate will have concerns about how the local authority or Health Trust 
has acted or what decision has been made or what outcome is proposed. The advocate must write a 
report outlining their concerns for the local authority or Health Trust. The local authority or Health 
Trust should convene a meeting with the advocate to consider the concerns and to provide a written 
response to the advocate following the meeting. 

Where the individual does not have capacity, or is not otherwise able, to challenge a decision, the 
advocate must challenge any decision where they believe the decision is inconsistent with the local 
authority’s or Health Trust’s duty to promote the individual’s wellbeing. 

Where a person has been assisted and supported and nevertheless remains unable to make their 
own representations or their own decisions, the independent advocate must use what information 
they have collected and found, and make the representations on behalf of the person. They must 
‘advocate’ on their behalf, to put their case, to scrutinise the options, to question the plans if they do 
not appear to meet all eligible needs or do not meet them in a way that fits with the person’s wishes 
and feelings, or are not the least restrictive of people’s lives, and to challenge local authority decisions 
where necessary. The ultimate goal of this representation is to secure a person’s rights and ensure 
that their wishes are taken fully into account. 

3.3  Volunteers & Social Value
In keeping with Salford City Council’s commitment to ensure that the services it commissions create 
additional social value to the local community, it is expected that the service will develop appropriate 
volunteering opportunities and the associated volunteer training and support programmes.  

Furthermore it is expected that the service will also create opportunities for people to become peer 
advocates   An example where this might yield excellent results and social value, might be in training 
peer advocates to represent people in prison and the service will be expected to explore innovative 
ways of undertaking these Care Act duties (see section 2.1.3).

By retaining non-statutory advocacy as an identifiable advocacy modality, means that a considerable 
amount of preventative work can be undertaken that will provide added social value, such as 
supporting people to return to (or remain in) employment, addressing housing issues etc.  
 
3.4  Confidentiality
Advocates will have the right to access information regarding the Service User, which is relevant to 
the issue.  The Advocate may also receive information that is private to the Service User but has no 
bearing on the issue.

The Advocate must ensure that only information relevant to the issue is gathered and that all 
information is kept in a secure environment at all times and only accessible to authorised personnel of 
the Provider.

To ensure Service User confidentiality, the Advocate will do the following:
 Inform the person giving information of the limits to the information the Provider can keep for 

the referred Service User.
 Secure and dispose of confidentially, any information that is given, emailed, faxed or posted to 

the Advocate that is not relevant to the issue.
 Delete paragraphs from paper copies of meeting notes and reports that are not relevant to the 

issue concerned.
 Delete paragraphs from electronic copies of meeting notes and reports that are not relevant to 

the issue concerned (if the document is in read only format, then it should be returned with a 
request for certain paragraphs to be removed).

 Be compliant with the requirements of the Data Protection Act 1998.

3.5  Management & Accountability

Page 39



V 7/11/11
Advocates will be managed by, and primarily accountable to, the Provider thereby maintaining their 
independence from other local providers.

The third updated version on the Advocacy Quality Performance Mark (QPM)74 was published on 3 
April 2014 by the National Development Team for Inclusion (NDTi). The QPM is a tool for providers of 
independent advocacy to show their commitment and ability to provide high quality advocacy services 
– essential for people to have their voices heard, to exercise choice and control and to live 
independently 4 . The successful provider should have the QPM award or work towards achieving this 
within a year of being appointed. 

All Advocates should receive regular supervision meetings. This will enable a review of the quality of 
work being carried out, and the Advocates adherence to the Provider’s policies, protocols and 
guidelines.

The Provider shall also have its own internal quality assurance system, which should include standard 
setting, monitoring, management and review processes, to ensure that the required service quality is 
maintained.

It is also expected that the service will demonstrate significant service user involvement in the 
management and delivery of the service and work towards the principles of a User Led Organisation.  
The service will ensure that service users are given the opportunity to be involved the recruitment 
process and participate in interview panels for workers and volunteers.  The service will also explore 
ways of building capacity in developing peer advocacy.

3.6 Care Pathway(s)
The service will need to establish a broad range of care and referral pathways to ensure that the 
service is meeting the needs of a wide range of service users.

It is expected that the commissioned organisation will strive to reach all sections of the community in 
Salford, particularly those communities who services have traditionally found difficult to reach, for 
example people with Autistic spectrum conditions, BME communities, LGBT Community.  

It is expected that the organisation will employ a variety of outreach methods and approaches of 
engagement appropriate to the needs and requirements of different communities and groups and 
demonstrate that they are assertively outreaching to maximise engagement and service take up. 
Activity around engagement with communities will be monitored by the Lead Commissioner and 
targets may be set in order to ensure that the service is reaching all sections of the community.

4.  Referral, Access and Acceptance Criteria

4.1 Geographic coverage/boundaries
Service operates within the boundaries of Salford for those people registered with a Salford GP. 
However some travelling outside of Salford may be required for people placed out of area but who 
have a Salford GP.

4.2 Location(s) of Service Delivery
The service will be delivered across the communities of Salford and it is expected that the service will 
provide a base within the city.   One advocate will be accommodated in Meadowbrook Acute Inpatient 
Unit to meet advocacy demand from inpatients 9 this accommodation will not incura  cost). Further 
advocates may be out-stationed in areas where there is considered to be the needs for an on-site 
specialist advocate, for example an Advocate to respond to the needs of people with dementia.
 
4.3  Days/Hours of operation 
Broadly 5 days per week, Monday to Friday, 09:00 to 17:00 hours, although some working outside of 

4 http://www.qualityadvocacy.org.uk/

Page 40



V 7/11/11
these hours may be required depending on specific cases and requirements.
 
4.4  Referral criteria & sources

There are certain referral criteria that apply and the provider is expected to adhere to detail and range 
of guidance documents outlined in Section 2.1  

Service users must be Salford residents or registered with a Salford GP. 

The exception to this is in the case of IMCA referrals, the service user needs to be located in Salford 
at the time of the referral; “The IMCA to be instructed is the one who works wherever the person is at 
the time that the person needs support and representation”. (MCA Code of Practice CH10, p183).

4.5  Referral route
Referral routes into the service depend on the form of advocacy requested but will usually be a:
 
 Referral from health and social care services
 Referral form carers and  family members / friends – where possible
 Referral from any other voluntary / community sector bodies, as appropriate.
 Self referrals – where possible

4.6  Exclusion criteria
The service is not able to provide for:

 Carers (signposted to the Carers Support Service)

However it will be expected that the service will establish effective working relationships with the 
above service.

4.7 Response time & detail and prioritisation 

The information below outlines the minimum requirement for the services.  However, the expectation 
is that the provider will work to develop and improve this approach to deliver the service in a more 
efficient manner.

Page 41



V 7/11/11

Referral into service
Provider to describe process and administration

Referral Accepted and contact made
Provider to describe process and administration

Provider undertake assessment
Provider to describe this and the model of assessment 

to be used

Agree plan of support
Provider to describe, given typical example

Implementation then outcome assessment
Provider to describe

Close
Provider to describe process for closing

Referral Rejected
Provider to describe process 1 working day

3 working days

5 working days

10 working days

5.  Discharge Criteria and Planning 

Advocacy will be case/outcome focused i.e. once the desired outcome or issue has been resolved 
the case will be closed. This will need to be made clear to the service user at the outset through 
effective planning.  The only exception to this would be where a provider may recruit a volunteer to 
act as a Citizen Advocate which would be a long term one-to-one relationship.

6.  Self-Care and Patient and Carer Information

The service aims to maximise, where possible, individual’s potential for independence and self 
care, providing people with the support and skills to put forward their views and opinions.
A plan will be developed with service users to ensure the service is able to meet their needs and 
that they have identified and agreed what their anticipated outcomes are.  

7.  Continual Service Improvement/Innovation Plan

Page 42



V 7/11/11

Description   Milestones Expected Benefits Timescales
The provider will present a 6 
month evaluation report to 
commissioners. 

Complete 
evaluation report

Inform service 
development and 
continuous 
improvement

October 2016

Increase capacity through the 
recruitment of volunteers.

10 Volunteers 
recruited for the 
service Annually.

Increase the 
capacity using 
volunteers for any 
aspect of the service

Annually

The successful provider 
should have the QPM award 
or work towards achieving this 
within a year of being 
appointed. 

QPM Award 
achieved 

The service has a 
recognised and 
assured quality 
standard

March 31st 
2017

Once appointed, all 
independent advocates 
should be expected to 
achieve the National 
Qualification in Independent 
Advocacy (Level 3) within a 
year of being appointed.  The 
provider is expected to 
demonstrate a commitment to 
this training.

Advocates achieve 
qualification within 
12 months of 
appointment.

The services has a 
skilled and 
knowledgeable 
advocacy workforce 
who operate in a  
consistent manner.

Training plan 
submitted after 
three months 
of contract 
start date 

Advocates 
trained 
within 12 
months of 
appointment.

Monitoring Arrangements
Monitoring arrangements led by Salford City Council via the Assistant Director for Integrated  
Commissioning (Joint Local Authority PCT appointment) 

8.  Baseline Performance Targets – Quality, Performance & Productivity 

N.B. This section may be subject to change following contract award, in line with the 
successful organisation’s submission.

The Provider will be required to prepare quarterly performance reports for submission to the Lead 
Commissioner. These reports must be submitted two weeks before the quarterly performance 
review meetings. 

Reporting will be broken into the following seven initial categories, although there may be further 
sub-division of these categories:

1) IMCA
i) Serious Medical Treatment
ii) Changes in Accommodation
iii) Adult Protection
iv) Care Review
v) DoLS 39a
vi) DoLS 39c
vii) DoLS 39d

Page 43



V 7/11/11
viii) RPR
ix) Litigation Friend

2) IMHA
3) Care Act Assessment
4) Care Act Review
5) Safeguarding Enquiry
6) NHS Complaints
7) Non Statutory Advocacy  

For each category the provider will supply:

a) Total number of clients
b) Referrals brought forward 
c) New referrals 
d) Cases closed
e) Referral response times
f) Total distribution of hours
g) Mean hours per case
h) Details of any complaints /compliments received
i) Details of any safeguarding matters
j) Breakdown of people accessing the service by 

o client group
o age 
o gender 
o ethnicity 
o religion 
o sexual identity

The Provider will also provide customer feedback as evidence of the outcomes below being met. 

Outcome Evidence 

1 Salford Citizens will be represented and supported to 
express their views, needs, rights, preferences and 
decisions.

Customer Feedback 
Questionnaire

2 Salford Citizens will benefit from a range of 
approaches to meet different requirements, needs 
and service  user groups

Customer Feedback 
Questionnaire

3 Salford Citizens will have greater understanding of, 
and involvement in the planning of, their  care and 
support.

Customer Feedback 
Questionnaire

4 Salford Citizens will have greater choice and control 
over their own lives and the support they receive

Customer Feedback 
Questionnaire

5 Salford Citizens will have greater confidence, 
capacity and skills to articulate their needs, with or 
without the assistance of an Advocate.

Customer Feedback 
Questionnaire

6 Salford Citizens and their families will be better 
equipped to advocate for themselves in the future

Customer Feedback 
Questionnaire

Page 44



Environmental Policy

Date Prepared by Approved by Details Next 
review due

31/07/09 Jul 15
22/02/16 Rob Riley Markus 

Greenwood
Total rewrite Feb 19

01/03/20 Stephanie 
Cerce

Provisional Review during 
annual audit of all policies

Apr 20

Environmental Policy Statement

Mind in Salford aims to protect the environment by ensuring the sustainable use and 
disposal of scarce resources and look to continually improve our environmental impact. 

This policy translates the core environmental aims and beliefs of the organisation into 
objectives and guidelines for action, which will inform and have an impact on all areas of our 
work. This policy also refers to the Environmental Policy of the Angel healthy Living Centre 
where Mind in Salford is based.

Markus Greenwood Chief Executive       February 2016

Page 45



Mind in Salford will:

Adopt Article 4 of the revised EU Waste Framework Directive Which sets out 5 stages for 
dealing with waste, ranked according to environmental impact - the ‘waste hierarchy’. We will 
aim to achieve the best possible stage for any of our processes.

Stages Include

1 Prevention: using less material in design and manufacture, keeping products for 
longer, re-use, using less hazardous materials

2 Preparing 
for re-use:

checking, cleaning, repairing, refurbishing, whole items or spare parts

3 Recycling: turning waste into a new substance or product, includes composting if it 
meets quality protocols

4 Other 
recovery:

includes anaerobic digestion, incineration with energy recovery, 
gasification and pyrolysis which produce energy (fuels, heat and power) 
and materials from waste, some backfilling.

5 Disposal: landfill and incineration without energy recovery

Mind in Salford will

Will also adopt and aim to apply the principles of sustainable development - that is, 
development which meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs.

Strive to adopt the highest available environmental standards in all areas of its operations.

To achieve this we will: 
Investigate new environmental techniques and practices to ensure Mind in Salford is keeping 
abreast of what can be done and implementing new practices where appropriate.

Aim to minimise the use and impact of all materials, supplies and energies.

To achieve this we will: 
Aim to use suppliers who recycle their products e.g. toner and ink cartridges.

Have a policy to only use paper when necessary and to issue newsletters and information 
electronically where possible. Unwanted printed paper will be used for making notes.

Aim to utilise energy efficient technologies when purchasing and replacing office equipment. 

Minimise waste production in all areas of the organisation and aim for waste-free processes. 
All waste paper and plastic will be recycled using the recycling bins provided by the Angel 
health Living Centre

Page 46

http://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/HTML/?uri=CELEX:32008L0098&rid=1


Purchase, where feasible, sustainable products for use in the organisations’ operations, i.e. 
recycled, FSC or low environmental impact products and energy from renewable sources.

Ensure that electrical equipment is switched off when not in use and that it is operating on an 
energy efficient basis through regular checks and servicing.

Expect similar environmental standards from any partners involved in our work.

To achieve this we will: Where applicable and appropriate discuss what environmental 
practices existing and new partners are carrying out and share information on what Mind in 
Salford is doing.

Publicise our environmental position.

To achieve this we will: Publicise stories about Mind in Salford’s green practices through:
- Newsletter
- Website
- Publicity material
- Awards/adverts on site
Encourage employee involvement in environmental action.

To achieve this we will: Have a lead figure within Mind in Salford to act as an 
‘Environmental Champion’ for the organisation, give advice to other employees and 
volunteers and lead on initiatives to make Mind in Salford as green an organisation as 
possible.

At staff and volunteer inductions discuss the various environmental practices of Mind in
Salford and what is required of the members of staff to adhere to these practices.

Adopt an environmentally sound transport strategy.

To achieve this we will: Ensure that all Mind in Salford staff and volunteers have access to 
facilities to store bikes securely and that staff are made aware of these facilities. These 
facilities are available at the healthy Living centre where we are based.

Add a financial reimbursement component for bicycle travel when travelling on
Mind in Salford business to the travel expenses form as an incentive.

Aim to include environmental and ethical considerations in investment decisions where 
appropriate.

Assess the environmental impact of all its operations on a continual basis.

To achieve this we will: Have regular review dates throughout the year where the 
‘Environmental Champion’ will review the environmental impact of our projects and practices 
and make recommendations to the senior management team. 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 1 –Open to the public 
ITEM NO.

___________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Place

TO  

Procurement Board

ON

13 May 2020

___________________________________________________________________

TITLE: Approval to award the contract for the acceptance of a tender under Council’s 
approved corporate revenue budget for the renewal of the service contract for the 
maintenance and repairs of Lot 1 Corporate and Lot 2 Schools boiler plant and heating 
systems.
___________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Procurement Board:-  

Approve the award of the Contract for the works to J Fletcher(Engineers) Limited as 
detailed in the table below:
 

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Gas and Oil Boiler Repair and Servicing SLA.

Name of Successful Contractor J Fletcher(Engineers) Limited
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
                                  01828722

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Award Price £57,156.25 per 
annum split 
between £16,263.25 
for schools and 
£40,893.00 for 
corporate 
properties.

Per Annum (estimated 
average)

Page 49

Agenda Item 5c



Contract Value Including Fees and 
approved QRA
(if applicable )

£171,468.75 over 3 
years plus the 
option for two 

extension periods

Full Project cost of 
£285,781.25 if the options 
for the extensions are 
exercised 

Contract Duration                                       3 years 
Contract Start Date 01/06/2020
Contract End Date 31/05/2023

Optional Extension Period 1                                      12 months
Optional Extension Period 2                                      12 months

Who will approve each Extension Period? Strategic Director (extension < £150k)
Contact Officer (Name & number) Gregory Durkin 0161 779 4942

                               Place DirectorateLead Service Group

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Open Tender arrangement via The Chest 
(Ref DN462847)

Framework Details (where applicable)
(Procurement Body, Framework Reference & 

Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

                 Open Tender arrangement 

SCC Corporate Revenue Budget and Third Party 
(Schools) Direct Payments

Funding Source 

___________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned 
contract.
___________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS (NOT OPEN TO THE PUBLIC)

Exempt under Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12 A of the Local Government Act 1972

  “Tender Submissions and Evaluation documents”
___________________________________________________________________

KEY DECISION:  No

___________________________________________________________________

Ethical Contractor Mayor’s Employment Charter
Committed to sign up to charter

 
 

Accredited Living Wage Employer

Page 50



DETAILS: 

1. Background

1.1 It is a statutory requirement on the Council under The Gas Safety(Installation 
and Use) Regulations 1998(GSIUR) as amended on 6 April 2018 (which set 
legal requirements for the design, installation, operation and maintenance of 
gas heating systems and appliances) that compliance with the regulations are 
adhered to. The regulations have a specific purpose to prevent misuse, undue 
consumption and adherence to all safety aspects.

1.2  To comply with this the Council contracts with specialist companies to 
undertake repairs, servicing and testing in corporate buildings in accordance 
with the periods and frequency required under the regulations. The current 
contract for this work has now expired and a new service contract needs 
commissioning. 

1.3 Tenders have been sought via an open tendering arrangement via the Chest to 
select a suitable contractor to undertake the inspection and servicing of gas 
and oil heating and boiler systems on behalf of the Council for an initial period 
of three years together with an option to extend this year on year for a further 
two twelve monthly periods. The contract will cover for supporting the provision 
of a comprehensive management recording service to comply with the 
regulations. 

1.4  The service would also be available for use by schools and educational 
establishments throughout the City of Salford. They would contract directly with 
the provider and be directly responsible for the payment to the contactor for any 
testing and repairs. 

1.5 It will be a requirement under the contract that the successful contractor will 
provide the use of, and availability for use by the City of Salford, of an electronic 
web based portal where access to all reports, assessments and remedial 
requirements shall be readily available.  

2. The Procurement Process

2.1 The works for the project were tendered under the Council’s e-tendering portal 
in accordance with Contractual Standing Orders. Tenders were let by 
competition under an Open Tender arrangement via the Chest (ref DN462847)

2.2 Eighteen companies submitted tenders and these have been evaluated in 
accordance with the selection criteria.

Page 51



2.3 The evaluation scores are as follows:-

Bidder % Quality 
Score Max

50%

% Price 
Score 

Max 50%

%Overall Score
Max 100%

T1 33.00 0                   33.00 (Void)
VT2 37.00      28.39 65.39
T3 30.00      37.43 67.43
T4 22.00         0 22.00 (Price unrealistic)
T5 35.00      42.05 77.05
T6 21.00      50.00 71.00
T7 36.00      33.52 69.52
T8 33.00     16.50 49.50
T9 35.00     18.76 53.76
T10 21.00     31.31 52.31
T11 37.00     49.74 86.74
T12 38.00     20.21 58.21
T13 35.00        0             35.00 (Void)
T14 22.00        0 22.00 (Price unrealistic)
T15 30.00     17.66 47.66
T16 40.00     26.53 66.53
T17 30.00     48.79 78.79
T18 35.00     30.29 65.29

2.4 Following the evaluation process a number of tenders were discounted for 
reasons of being non-compliant or not economically advantageous. The 
company that scored highest in accordance with the award criteria was T11 - J 
Fletcher(Engineers) Limited with a tender of £57,156.25 per annum 
(£171,468.75 over three years). Their submission produced a score of 86.74% 
and represents the most economically advantageous offer to the Council.

2.5     The three year contract contains an option for up to a further two years extension.

3 Social Value 

3.1 J Fletcher(Engineers) Limited stated the following in their submission:-

They are a Salford based company with 30 years trading experience. Out of 
their 120 plus employees the majority are Salford residents or reside locally. 
They offer numerous employment opportunities for local labour in the form of 
traineeships, apprenticeships and work experience placements and work 
directly with Salford and Trafford schools and colleges. 

They support the local communities and charities including Wood Street 
Mission and Emmaus House and offer free services to local charities where 
possible. employment opportunities.

Page 52



J Fletchers are fully signed up and an accredited living wage employer and all 
operatives are currently are currently paid at least this amount. 

They have confirmed that they are committed to sign up to the Mayors 
employment Charter.

3.2 All the above outputs will be managed and monitored through a project-    
specific social value plan. The log will provide a schedule and results 
summary showing how the social value initiatives are progressing and 
achievements made. 

The successful tenderer is a Greater Manchester based SME and there are 
opportunities for them to deliver social value outputs over the life of the contract.

__________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: All relating to health and safety. The Sustainable 
Development and Carbon Reduction Programme are also accounted for.
___________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A
___________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  High. It is statutory requirement that the Council comply 
with the Gas Safety(Installation and Use) Regulations 1998(GSIUR) as amended 6 
April 2018.
___________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   The funding sources currently available for the corporate 
gas and oil boiler plant and heating systems service and maintenance are those to 
support the 2020/21 Corporate Revenue Budget and are detailed in reports previously 
submitted to Cabinet for approval. Third party users (schools etc) costs will be paid 
directly by themselves.
___________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323.

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract 
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of 
the contract follows a tender exercise by competition in accordance with an Open 
Tender arrangement via The Chest (ref DN462847).

The purpose of this arrangement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation 
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council, 
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will 
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who 
have been selected and this may be through any number of ways e.g. open 

Page 53



competition, mini-competition, direct allocation etc. depending on the circumstances. 
A contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s. 

The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out under CSO’s for open 
competition to ensure the procurement process is compliant. Eighteen tenders were 
received from suppliers for this project, which have been evaluated on the most 
economically advantageous tender basis in line with procurement procedures 
resulting in the proposed award of the contract to J Fletcher(Engineers) Limited. The 
procurement procedures therefore appear robust and compliant with the requirements 
of the Council’s CSO’s and public procurement legislation.

The Council has a statutory responsibility under the Gas Safety (Installation and Use) 
Regulations 1998 (as amended), to prevent misuse, undue consumption, and 
adherence to safety requirements contained within the Regulations, and as such 
enters into arrangements with specialist companies to provide servicing, testing, repair 
etc in its corporate buildings as required to comply with the legislation.
 
Legal Services will assist with preparing any contractual documentation upon receipt 
of instructions to ensure the Council’s position and interest are protected. 
___________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Gemma Singleton (Finance Officer - Level 
2).  Tel. 0161 793 2578

There is funding available under the approved Corporate Revenue Budget to meet the 
annual scheme costs for corporate boiler plant and heating system repairs 
(£40,893.00 per annum for three years totalling £122,679.00). Third party users 
(schools etc) costs estimated at £16,263.25 per annum will be paid directly by 
themselves.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Heather Stanton (Category Manager - Corporate 
Procurement Team) Tel. 0161 686 6241

The project has been competitively tendered under the Council’s Constitution 
governing contract procurement in accordance with a competition under an Open 
Tender arrangement via The Chest (ref DN462847). The winning tenderer has 
submitted the most economically advantageous offer which also supports the 
Council’s objectives of delivering social value on this contract.
___________________________________________________________________

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS.

The routine servicing and repairs to boilers and heating systems will help ensure 
minimum usage of energy requirements and result in reduced emission outputs. Also 
the locality of the Salford based service provider will help reduce travel distances and 
result in vehicle fuel efficiencies and hence a further saving on carbon and other 
emissions.
___________________________________________________________________

Page 54



OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER: Les Woolhouse – Building Surveying Manager   TEL. NO. 0161 
779 4961
___________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All Wards
___________________________________________________________________

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 22 April 2020
	5a Request for Approval - Contract Award - Salford Carers Service
	5b Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - Contract Award - Salford Advocacy Hub
	05(b) - Appendix 1 Salford Advocacy Specification
	05(b) - Appendix 2 MiS Environmental Policy Mar20 3y

	5c Request for Approval - Acceptance of the Tender for the Gas and Oil Boiler SLA Contract

